## CLIFTON PARK WATER AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING

Thursday, March 11, 2021 4:00 PM

## AGENDA

## **Old Business**

- Project to Increase Capacity from SCWA
- SCWA Water Purchase Agreement Renewal
- Project to Investigate Capacity Improvements in Preserve
- <u>Verizon Request for Installation of Telecommunications Tower at Boyack WTP</u>
- Plan to Protect Employees in Future Health Emergencies

## **New Business**

• 2020 Financial Audit Presentation

## **Other Business**

<u>Approve Minutes of February 18, 2021 Meeting</u>

## **Clifton Park Water Authority**

**Resolution** # \_\_\_\_, 2021

Amending Resolution # 17, 2020

## Award Contract for SCWA Interconnect Upgrade

**WHEREAS**, the Clifton Park Water Authority (CPWA) has awarded a construction contract for the construction of a pump station at its connection with the Saratoga County Water Authority, and

**WHEREAS**, this contract was awarded by Resolution #17, 2020 at a meeting of the CPWA Board of Directors, and

**WHEREAS**, the CPWA Board of Directors wishes to amend the resolution to include construction phase engineering services by CT Male Associates in the amount of \$37,600, now therefore be it

**RESOLVED**, that the Clifton Park Water Authority hereby amends Resolution #17, 2020 to include construction phase engineering services by CT Male Associates in the amount of \$37,600 and increase the Capital Budget item for this project accordingly.

Motion By: \_\_\_\_\_

Seconded By: \_\_\_\_\_

Roll Call Vote:

Rom Cum vote.		
	Ayes	<u>Noes</u>
Mr. Gerstenberger		
Mr. Ryan		
Mr. Taubkin		
Mr. Butler		
Ms. Osborne		

# C.T. MALE ASSOCIATES

Engineering, Surveying, Architecture, Landscape Architecture & Geology, D.P.C.

50 Century Hill Drive, Latham, NY 12110 518.786.7400 FAX 518.786.7299 www.ctmale.com



# SCWA Interconnect Pump Station Project

## **Construction Phase Services**

TOTAL	\$37,600
Estimated fee (per 2019 CTM Reimbursable Rate Schedule)	\$ 1,000
Reimbursables	
C. Construction Materials Testing (QCQA Laboratories) (Estimated at \$2,800.00)	\$ 2,800
B. Construction Observation (Estimated at 160 Hours @ \$95.00/hour)	\$ 15,200
A. Construction Administration (Lump Sum)	\$ 18,600

## **Clifton Park Water Authority**

**Resolution # \_\_\_\_\_, 2021** 

## **Approve Plan to Protect Employees in Future Health Emergencies**

WHEREAS, the Clifton Park Water Authority has created a plan to protect workers in the event of future health emergencies as mandated by the State of New York, now therefore be it

**RESOLVED**, that the Clifton Park Water Authority Board of Directors hereby approves the Plan to Protect Employees in Future Health Emergencies, as attached.

Motion to Accept: \_\_\_\_\_ Seconded: \_\_\_\_\_

Roll Call Vote:

	Ayes	<u>Noes</u>
Mr. Gerstenberger		
Mr. Ryan		
Mr. Taubkin		
Mr. Butler		
Ms. Osborne		

# **Clifton Park Water Authority**

# Plan to Protect Employees in Future Health Emergencies

## Introduction -

This plan is meant to provide guidance for the protection of CPWA employees in the event of a state disaster emergency involving a communicable disease. The CPWA may employ all or some of the measures outlined, depending on the severity and degree of risk involved, as well as the needs of the CPWA to provide safe drinking water to its customers.

## Essential Employees –

Executive Orders 202.4 and 202.6 issued by New Governor Andrew Cuomo on March 16 and March 18, 2020, respectively, issued guidance for who may be considered an essential entity and an essential worker so as not to be limited by the in-person work restrictions during the Covid-19 pandemic, including, but not limited to, the following: "essential infrastructure including utilities...", "vendors of essential services necessary to maintain the safety, sanitation and essential operations of residences or other essential businesses" and "vendors that provide essential services needed to ensure the continuing operation of government agencies and provide for the health, safety and welfare of the public".

The provision of potable water to the customers of the CPWA is an essential service and as such, the employees of the CPWA are considered essential employees. It is important that they continue to perform the duties required to effectively deliver safe drinking water continuously to CPWA customers. Due to the limited number of employees at the CPWA performing various necessary duties, all employees of the CPWA would be considered essential.

## Managing Employee Schedules and Operations to Minimize Risk of Exposure –

To minimize risk of exposure, the CPWA will, to the extent possible, do the following:

- Provide appropriate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) to all CPWA employees.
- Close public access to CPWA buildings and minimize or eliminate employee crossover between CPWA buildings.
- Stagger shifts of office and treatment plant employees to avoid potential contact between employees at the same location.

- Divide field crew into groups, working from separate locations. These groups would avoid contact with each other to avoid potential exposure between groups.
- Unless absolutely necessary, suspend activities that require entry into customers' homes.
- Perform frequent cleaning and disinfecting of shared workplace surfaces.

## Response to Employee Exposure to Disease –

CPWA employees may be allowed to continue working following a potential exposure, provided that they remain asymptomatic and additional precautions are taken to protect them, their coworkers and the general public. These employees should adhere to the following practices prior to and during their work shift:

- Employee should be pre-screened upon entering the CPWA facility. This may include an assessment of the employee's well-being, as well as a temperature check.
- Employee should continue to self-monitor their condition outside of and during work. Should they begin to notice symptoms, they should immediately notify their supervisor and go home.
- Employee should wear whatever PPE is recommended, and for a duration established by the Center for Disease Control.
- Employee should maintain proper social distance from other people as work duties permit in the workplace.
- The CPWA shall perform any appropriate disinfecting and cleaning practices of all shared areas.

Exposed employees may be asked to quarantine at home, or may be provided the opportunity to work from home, if possible. Employees may also be asked to submit to available testing for the illness in order to remain working.

## Response to Employee Becoming Sick -

Should an employee become sick, either during the day or outside of work, the following should be done in response:

- If at work, the employee should be sent home immediately and ordered to quarantine appropriately.
- Surfaces should be cleaned and disinfected at all locations where the employee worked.
- Information should be compiled regarding persons who had contact with the ill employee during the time the employee had symptoms and in the days preceding the illness. These employees would be considered "exposed" and would need to adhere to the section titled "Response to Employee Exposure to Disease".

**Clifton Park Water Authority** 

**Resolution** # \_\_\_\_\_, 2021

## **Health Reimbursement Plan Adoption**

**RESOLVED,** that the form of Welfare Benefit Plan, effective January 1, 2021, presented to this meeting (and a copy of which is attached hereto) is hereby approved and adopted, and that the Administrator of the Clifton Park Water Authority is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver to the Administrator of said Plan one or more counterparts of the Plan.

**RESOLVED,** that the Administrator of the Plan shall be instructed to take such actions that the Administrator deems necessary and proper in order to implement the Plan, and to set up adequate accounting and administrative procedures for the provision of benefits under the Plan.

**RESOLVED,** that proper agents of the Clifton Park Water Authority shall act as soon as possible to notify the employees of the Clifton Park Water Authority of the adoption of the Plan and to deliver to each employee a copy of the Summary Plan Description of the Plan, which Summary Plan Description is attached hereto and is hereby approved.

Motion to Accept: _			Seconded:	
Roll Call Vote:	Ayes	Noes		
Mr. Gerstenberger				
Mr. Ryan Mr. Taubkin				
Mr. Butler				
Ms. Osborne				



# Clifton Park Water Authority

Clifton Park Water Authority 661 Clifton Park Ctr Rd Clifton Park, NY 12065

# Clifton Park Water Authority HRA Plan

Plan Document

Effective January 01, 2021

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

## I. ARTICLE - DEFINITIONS

01.	"PLAN ADMINISTRATOR"
02.	"CODE"
03.	"COVERAGE PERIOD"
04.	"DEPENDENT"
05.	"EFFECTIVE DATE"
06.	"ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE"
07.	"EMPLOYEE"
08.	"EMPLOYER"
09.	"EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION"
10.	"ERISA"
11.	"HRA"
12.	"LEASED EMPLOYEE"
13.	"PARTICIPANT"
14.	"PLAN YEAR"
15.	"PREMIUMS"
16.	"QUALIFYING MEDICAL EXPENSES"

## **II. ARTICLE - PARTICIPATION**

- 01. ELIGIBILITY
- 02. EFFECTIVE DATE OF PARTICIPATION
- 03. TERMINATION OF PARTICIPATION

## **III. ARTICLE - BENEFITS**

- 01. ESTABLISHMENT OF HRA
- 02. DEBIT CARDS
- 03. NONDISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS
- 04. HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ARRANGEMENT CLAIMS
- 05. RECOVERY OF EXCESS OR MISTAKEN PAYMENTS

## **IV. ARTICLE - ERISA PROVISIONS**

- 01. CLAIM FOR BENEFITS
- 02. NAMED FIDUCIARY
- 03. GENERAL FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES
- 04. NONASSIGNABILITY OF RIGHTS

## V. ARTICLE - ADMINISTRATION

- 01. HRA ADMINISTRATION
- 02. EXAMINATION OF RECORDS
- 03. INDEMNIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATOR

## VI. ARTICLE - AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF HRA

- 01. AMENDMENT
- 02. TERMINATION

## VII. ARTICLE - MISCELLANEOUS

- 01. ADOPTION BY OTHER EMPLOYERS
- 02. HRA INTERPRETATION
- 03. GENDER AND NUMBER
- 04. WRITTEN DOCUMENT
- 05. EXCLUSIVE BENEFIT
- 06. NOT EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT
- 07. ACTION BY THE EMPLOYER
- 08. NO GUARANTEE OF TAX CONSEQUENCES

## 09. INDEMNIFICATION OF EMPLOYER BY PARTICIPANTS

- 10. FUNDING
- 11. GOVERNING LAW
- 12. SEVERABILITY
- 13. HEADINGS
- 14. CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE
- 15. HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
- 16. UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS ACT
- 17. HIPAA PRIVACY STANDARDS
- 18. HIPAA ELECTRONIC SECURITY STANDARDS

Appendix A

# Clifton Park Water Authority HRA Plan

## INTRODUCTION

Clifton Park Water Authority hereby establishes effective January 01, 2021, a health reimbursement arrangement, known as the Clifton Park Water Authority HRA Plan (the "HRA"), the terms of which are set forth in this document. The HRA provides for the reimbursement of expenses as described in the Appendices of this document that have been incurred by Eligible Employees, their spouses and certain eligible Dependents of such Employees.

It is intended that the HRA meet the requirements for qualification under Code Section 105 with respect to Employees, and that benefits paid Employees hereunder be excludible from their gross incomes pursuant to Code Section 105(b).

## I. ARTICLE - DEFINITIONS

As used in this HRA, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings set forth herein unless a different meaning is clearly required by the context:

- 01. <u>"Plan Administrator"</u> means the individual(s) or committee appointed by the Employer to carry out the administration of the HRA. In the event the Administrator has not been appointed, or resigns from an appointment, the Employer shall be deemed to be the Administrator.
- 02. "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
- 03. <u>"Coverage Period"</u> means the period of the current plan year in which the individual is an eligible employee on or after his or her plan entry date.
- 04. <u>"Dependent"</u> means any individual who qualifies as a dependent under Code Section 152 (as modified by Code Section 105(b)). Any child of a Participant who is an "alternate recipient" under a qualified medical child support order under ERISA Section 609 shall be considered a Dependent under this Arrangement.
- 05. "Effective Date" means January 01, 2021.
- 06. <u>"Eligible Employee"</u> means an Employee who is eligible to participate in the Employer's group medical plan. An individual shall not be an "Eligible Employee" if such individual is not eligible for the Employer's group medical plan.
- 07. <u>"Employee"</u> means any person who is employed by the Employer and is regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 30 hours per week. The term "Employee" shall also include any person who is a Leased Employee deemed to be an Employee as provided in Code Section 414(n) or (o).
- 08. <u>"Employer"</u> means Clifton Park Water Authority, a Public Authority or any successor which shall maintain this HRA and any predecessor which has maintained this HRA. In addition, unless the context requires otherwise, the term "Employer" shall include any Participating Employer which shall adopt this HRA.
- 09. <u>"Employer Contribution"</u> means the amounts contributed to the HRA by the Employer.
- 10. "ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time.
- 11. <u>"HRA"</u> means the Clifton Park Water Authority HRA Plan as adopted by the Employer, including all amendments thereto.
- 12. "Leased Employee" means, effective with respect to Plan Years beginning on or after January 1, 1997, any person (other than an Employee of the Employer) who, pursuant to an agreement between the Employer and any other person or entity ("leasing organization"), has performed services for the Employer (or for the Employer and related persons determined in accordance with Code Section 414(n)(6)) on a substantially full time basis for a period of at least one year, and such services are performed under primary direction or control by the Employer. Contributions or benefits provided to a Leased Employee by the leasing organization which are attributable to services performed for the Employer shall be treated as provided by the Employer. Furthermore, compensation for a Leased Employee shall only include compensation from the leasing organization that is attributable to services performed for the Employer.

A Leased Employee shall not be considered an Employee of the Employer if:

- 1. such employee is covered by a money purchase pension plan providing:
  - a nonintegrated employer contribution rate of at least ten percent (10%) of compensation, as defined in Code Section 415(c)(3), but including amounts contributed pursuant to a salary reduction agreement which are excludable from the employee's gross income under Code Sections 125, 402(e)(3), 402(h) or 403(b),
  - ii. immediate participation, and

- iii. full and immediate vesting; and
- 2. leased employees do not constitute more than twenty percent (20%) of the recipient Employer's non-highly compensated workforce.
- 13. <u>"Participant"</u> means any Eligible Employee who has satisfied the requirements of the Section titled: "Eligibility" and has not for any reason become ineligible to participate further in the HRA.
- 14. <u>"Permissible Employee Class(es)"</u> means the permitted classifications for distinguishing among employees defined by law.
- 15. <u>"Plan Year"</u> means, for the first plan year, the period beginning January 01 and ending August 31. For subsequent plan years, "Plan Year" means the 12-month period beginning September 01 and ending August 31.
- 16. "Premiums" mean the Participant's cost for any health plan coverage.
- 17. <u>"Qualifying Medical Expenses"</u> means any expenses as described in the Appendices of this document that meets the definition of "qualified medical expenses" (within the meaning of Code Section 213(d) and as allowed under Code Section 105 and the rulings and Treasury regulations thereunder) of the Participant, the Participant's spouse or a Dependent and that are not otherwise used by the Participant as a deduction in determining the Participant's tax liability under the Code or reimbursed under any other health coverage, including a health Flexible Spending Account. If the Employer provides Health Savings Accounts for Participants, Qualifying Medical Expenses reimbursed shall be limited to those allowed under Code Section 223.

## **II. ARTICLE - PARTICIPATION**

## 01. Eligibility

Any Eligible Employee shall be eligible to participate hereunder on the date such Employee is enrolled in the Employer's group medical plan.

#### 02. Effective Date of Participation

An Eligible Employee who has satisfied the conditions of eligibility pursuant to the Section titled "Eligibility" shall become a Participant effective on the date that conditions of eligibility have been met.

## 03. Termination of Participation

Terminated Employees may not continue to participate in the HRA, and any unused amounts shall be forfeited. In the case of the death of the Participant, any remaining balances may only be paid out as reimbursements for Qualifying Medical Expenses as stated in the Section titled: "Health Reimbursement Arrangement Claims" under the Article titled: "Benefits" and shall not constitute a death benefit to the Participant's estate and/or the Participant's beneficiaries. A Participant shall be permitted at least annually to opt out of the HRA and waive future reimbursements from the HRA. This Section shall be applied and administered consistent with any rights a Participant and the Participant's Dependents may be entitled to pursuant to Code Section 4980B or the Section of the HRA titled: "Continuation of Coverage".

## **III. ARTICLE - BENEFITS**

## 01. Establishment of HRA

- a. The HRA is intended to qualify as a Health Reimbursement Arrangement under Code Section 105 and shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with such Code Section and the Treasury regulations thereunder.
- b. Participants in this Health Reimbursement Arrangement will have claims submitted by the group Health Plan Carrier for Qualifying Medical Expenses as defined under the HRA.
- c. The Employer shall make available to Participant an Employer Contribution in the amounts listed in the Appendices of this document.

The amounts provided to the HRA by The Employer will be made available on the first day of the plan year.

- d. This HRA shall not be coordinated or otherwise connected to the Employer's cafeteria plan (as defined in Code Section 125), except as permitted by the Code and the Treasury regulations thereunder in order for this HRA to be maintained as a Health Reimbursement Arrangement. No salary reduction contributions may be made to this Health Reimbursement Arrangement.
- e. If the Employer maintains Health Savings Accounts for Participants, this Arrangement shall be operated in accordance with the restrictions under Code Section 223.

## 02. Debit Cards

Participants may, subject to a procedure established by the Administrator and applied in a uniform nondiscriminatory manner, use debit and/or credit (stored value) cards ("cards") provided by the Administrator and the HRA for payment of prescription drugs from a pharmacy, subject to the following terms:

- a. Card only for prescriptions. Each Participant issued a card shall certify that such card shall only be used for prescription drug expenses. The Participant shall also certify that any prescription expense paid with the card has not already been reimbursed by any other plan covering health benefits and that the Participant will not seek reimbursement from any other plan covering health benefits.
- b. Card issuance. Such card shall be issued on the Participant's Effective Date of Participation and reissued for each Plan Year the Participant remains a Participant in the HRA. Such card shall be automatically cancelled upon the Participant's death or termination of employment, or if such Participant has a change in status that results in the Participant's withdrawal from the HRA.
- c. Maximum dollar amount available. The maximum dollar amount of coverage available shall be the maximum amount for the Plan Year as set forth in the Appendices of this document.
- d. Only available for use with certain service providers. The cards may only be used at pharmacy locations as have been approved by the Administrator.
- e. Substantiation. All purchases with the cards shall be subject to substantiation by the Administrator, usually by submission of a receipt from a provider describing the product or service, the date and the amount. The Administrator shall also follow the requirements set forth in Revenue Ruling 2003-43 and Notice 2006-69. All charges shall be conditional pending confirmation and substantiation.
- f. Correction methods. If a purchase is later determined by the Administrator to not qualify as described in this section, the Administrator, in its discretion, shall use one of the following correction methods to make the HRA whole. Until the amount is repaid, the Administrator may take further action to ensure that further violations of the terms of the card do not occur, up to and including denial of access to the card.
  - 1. Repayment of the improper amount by the Participant;
  - 2. Withholding the improper payment from the Participant's wages or other compensation to the extent consistent with applicable federal or state law;
  - 3. Claims substitution or offset of future claims until the amount is repaid; and
  - 4. If subsections (1) through (3) fail to recover the amount, consistent with the Employer's business practices, the Employer may treat the amount as any other business indebtedness.

## 03. Nondiscrimination Requirements

- a. It is the intent of this Health Reimbursement Arrangement to not discriminate in violation of the Code and the Treasury regulations thereunder.
- b. If the Administrator deems it necessary in order to avoid discrimination under this Health Reimbursement Arrangement, it may, but shall not be required to reduce benefits provided to "highly compensated

individuals" (as defined in Code Section 105(h)) in order to assure compliance with this Section. Any act taken by the Administrator under this Section shall be carried out in a uniform and nondiscriminatory manner.

## 04. Health Reimbursement Arrangement Claims

- a. The group Health Plan Carrier will submit all claims to the Claims Administrator for processing. The Claims Administrator will process your claims according to your Employer's HRA plan design then send your Provider a check for the amount that is eligible for reimbursement through this HRA. You are responsible to pay your Provider for billed amounts not covered by this HRA.
- b. Claims of Qualifying Medical Expenses incurred in any Coverage Period shall be paid as soon after a claim has been received as administratively practicable. If any claim is not submitted within 180 days immediately following the end of the Coverage Period (that is, by 02/27), those Medical Expense claims shall not be eligible for reimbursement by the Administrator.
- c. Payments under this HRA shall be made directly to the Provider.
- d. Reimbursement requests for Terminated Employees must be received within 180 days following the date of termination, or remaining funds will be forfeited.

#### 05. Recovery of Excess or Mistaken Payments

If any reimbursement or other payment made under this HRA Plan is subsequently found to have been excessive or made in error, the Plan shall notify the Participant and be entitled to recover the amount of such mistaken payments in accordance with the procedures set forth in this subsection. The Administrator and the Employer shall pursue recovery of mistaken payments utilizing one or more of the following correction methods: (a) Require the Participant or other person receiving the mistaken payment to reimburse the Plan for the amount of the mistaken payment; (b) If the HRA Administrator and the Employer are unable to obtain repayment per (a) above, deny the Participant reimbursement of subsequently submitted claims incurred during the same Plan Year until the amount of the mistaken payment is fully recovered by the Plan; or (c) Take such other action that the HRA Administrator and Employer reasonably deem necessary to ensure recovery of mistaken payments and that such mistaken payment, the Employer, consistent with its business practice, may treat the amount owed by the Employee as it would any other business debt. To the extent the Employer forgives the debt after requesting payment consistent with collection procedures for other business debt, the Employer shall report the amount of the mistaken payment to the Employee and IRS as taxable wages. Any of the above correction methods shall be pursued only in accordance with and to the extent permitted by applicable law.

## **IV. ARTICLE - ERISA PROVISIONS**

#### 01. Claim for Benefits

Any claim for Benefits shall be made to the Administrator. The following time frames for claims and the rules below apply:

Notification of whether claim is accepted or denied	30 days
Extension due to matters beyond the control of the Plan	
Insufficient information on the claim:	
Notification of	15 days
Response by Participant	45 days
Review of claim denial	60 days

The Administrator will provide written or electronic notification of all claim denials. The notice will state:

- 1. Information sufficient to identify the claim involved, including the date of service, the health care provider, the claim amount (if applicable), the diagnosis code and its corresponding meaning, and the treatment code and its corresponding meaning.
- 2. The specific reason or reasons for the adverse determination.
- 3. Reference to the specific HRA provisions on which the determination is based.
- 4. A description of any additional material or information necessary to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary.
- 5. A description of the HRA's internal review procedures and time limits applicable to such procedures, available external review procedures, as well as the claimant's right to bring a civil action under Section 502 of ERISA following a final appeal decision.
- 6. That upon request and free of charge, the following will be provided: a copy of any internal rule, guideline, protocol or other similar criterion that was relied upon in making the adverse determination regarding the claim, and an explanation of the scientific or clinical judgment for a determination that is based on a medical necessity, experimental treatment or other similar exclusion or limit.
- 7. In the case of a claim involving urgent care, a description of the expedited review process applicable to such claim.
- 8. The availability of and contact information for an applicable office of health insurance consumer assistance or ombudsman established under PHS Act Section 2793.

When the Participant receives a notice of a decision of denial, the Participant shall have 180 days following receipt of the notification within which to appeal the decision. The Participant may submit written comments, documents, records, and other information relating to the Claim. If the Participant requests, the Participant shall be provided, free of charge, reasonable access to, and copies of, all documents, records, and other information relevant to the Claim.

The period of time within which a denial on review is required to be made will begin at the time an appeal is filed in accordance with the procedures of the HRA. This timing is without regard to whether all the necessary information accompanies the filing.

A document, record, or other information shall be considered relevant to a Claim if it:

- 1. was relied upon in making the claim determination;
- 2. was submitted, considered, or generated in the course of making the claim determination, without regard to whether it was relied upon in making the claim determination;
- demonstrated compliance with the administrative processes and safeguards designed to ensure and to verify that claim determinations are made in accordance with HRA documents and that HRA provisions have been applied consistently with respect to all claimants; or
- 4. constituted a statement of policy or guidance with respect to the HRA concerning the denied claim.

The review will take into account all comments, documents, records, and other information submitted by the claimant relating to the Claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial claim determination. The review will not afford deference to the initial denial and will be conducted by a fiduciary of the HRA who is neither the individual who made the adverse determination nor a subordinate of that

#### individual.

After receiving notice of an adverse benefit determination or a final internal adverse benefit determination, a claimant may file with the HRA a request for an external review. A claimant may request from the Administrator additional information describing the HRA's external review procedure.

## 02. Named Fiduciary

The "named Fiduciaries" of this HRA are (1) the Employer and (2) the Administrator. The named Fiduciaries shall have only those specific powers, duties, responsibilities, and obligations as are specifically given them under the HRA including, but not limited to, any agreement allocating or delegating their responsibilities, the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference. In general, the Employer shall have the sole responsibility for providing benefits under the HRA; and shall have the sole authority to appoint and remove the Administrator; and to amend or terminate, in whole or in part, the HRA. The Administrator shall have the sole responsibility for the administration of the HRA, which responsibility is specifically described in the HRA. Furthermore, each named Fiduciary may rely upon any such direction, information or action of another named Fiduciary as being proper under the HRA, and is not required under the HRA to inquire into the propriety of any such direction, information or action. It is intended under the HRA that each named Fiduciary shall be responsible for the proper exercise of its own powers, duties, responsibilities and obligations under the HRA. Any person or group may serve in more than one Fiduciary capacity.

## 03. General Fiduciary Responsibilities

The Administrator and any other fiduciary under ERISA shall discharge their duties with respect to this HRA solely in the interest of the Participants and their beneficiaries and

- a. for the exclusive purpose of providing Benefits to Participants and their beneficiaries and defraying reasonable expenses of administering the HRA;
- b. with the care, skill, prudence and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent man acting in like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims; and
- c. in accordance with ERISA and the documents and instruments governing the HRA, insofar as such documents and instruments are consistent with ERISA.

## 04. Nonassignability of Rights

The right of any Participant to receive any reimbursement under the HRA shall not be alienable by the Participant by assignment or any other method, and shall not be subject to the rights of creditors, and any attempt to cause such right to be so subjected shall not be recognized, except to such extent as may be required by law.

## **V. ARTICLE - ADMINISTRATION**

## 01. HRA Administration

The operation of the HRA shall be under the supervision of the Administrator. It shall be a principal duty of the Administrator to see that the HRA is carried out in accordance with its terms, and for the exclusive benefit of Eligible Employees entitled to participate in the HRA. The Administrator shall have full power to administer the HRA in all of its details, subject, however, to the pertinent provisions of ERISA and the Code. The Administrator's powers shall include, but shall not be limited to the following authority, in addition to all other powers provided by this HRA:

- a. To make and enforce such rules and regulations as the Administrator deems necessary or proper for the efficient administration of the HRA;
- b. To interpret the HRA, the Administrator's interpretations thereof in good faith to be final and conclusive on all persons claiming benefits under the HRA;
- c. To decide all questions concerning the HRA and the eligibility of any person to participate in the HRA and to receive benefits provided under the HRA;
- d. To limit benefits for certain highly compensated individuals if it deems such to be desirable in order to avoid discrimination under the HRA in violation of the applicable provisions of the Code;
- e. To approve reimbursement requests and to authorize the payment of benefits;
- f. To appoint such agents, counsel, accountants, consultants, and actuaries as may be required to assist in administering the HRA; and
- g. To establish and communicate procedures to determine whether a medical child support order is qualified under ERISA Section 609.

Any procedure, discretionary act, interpretation or construction taken by the Administrator shall be done in a nondiscriminatory manner based upon uniform principles consistently applied and shall be consistent with the intent that the HRA shall continue to comply with the terms of Code Section 105(h) and the Treasury regulations thereunder.

#### 02. Examination of Records

The Administrator shall make available to each Participant, Eligible Employee and any other Employee of the Employer, for examination at reasonable times during normal business hours, such records as pertain to that person's interest under the HRA.

#### 03. Indemnification of Administrator

The Employer agrees to indemnify and to defend to the fullest extent permitted by law any Employee serving as the Administrator or as a member of a committee designated as Administrator (including any Employee or former Employee who previously served as Administrator or as a member of such committee) against all liabilities, damages, costs and expenses (including attorney's fees and amounts paid in settlement of any claims approved by the Employer) occasioned by any act or omission to act in connection with the HRA, if such act or omission is or was in good faith.

## VI. ARTICLE - AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF HRA

## 01. Amendment

The Employer, at any time or from time to time, may amend any or all of the provisions of the HRA without the consent of any Employee or Participant.

#### 02. Termination

The Employer is establishing this HRA with the intent that it will be maintained for an indefinite period of time. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Employer reserves the right to terminate the HRA, in whole or in part, at any time. In the event the HRA is terminated, no further reimbursements shall be made.

## **VII. ARTICLE - MISCELLANEOUS**

## 01. Adoption by Other Employers

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, and with the consent of the Employer, any other corporation or entity, whether an affiliate or subsidiary or not, may adopt this HRA and all of the provisions hereof, and participate herein and be known as a "Participating Employer", by a properly executed document evidencing said intent and will of such Participating Employer.

## 02. HRA Interpretation

All provisions of this HRA shall be interpreted and applied in a uniform, nondiscriminatory manner. This HRA shall be read in its entirety and not severed except as provided in the Section titled: "Severability".

#### 03. Gender and Number

Wherever any words are used herein in the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, they shall be construed as though they were also used in another gender in all cases where they would so apply, and whenever any words are used herein in the singular or plural form, they shall be construed as though they were also used in the other form in all cases where they would so apply.

## 04. Written Document

This HRA, in conjunction with any separate written document which may be required by law, is intended to satisfy the written HRA requirement of Code Section 105 and any Treasury regulations thereunder.

## 05. Exclusive Benefit

This HRA shall be maintained for the exclusive benefit of the Employees who participate in the HRA.

## 06. Not Employment Contract

This HRA shall not be deemed to constitute an employment contract between the Employer and any Participant or Employee, or to be a consideration or an inducement for the employment of any Participant or Employee. Nothing contained in this HRA shall be deemed to give any Participant or Employee the right to be retained in the service of the Employer or to interfere with the right of the Employer to discharge any Participant or Employee at any time regardless of the effect which such discharge shall have upon him as a Participant of this HRA.

## 07. Action by the Employer

Whenever the Employer under the terms of the HRA is permitted or required to do or perform any act or matter or thing, it shall be done and performed by an authorized representative of the Employer.

## 08. No Guarantee of Tax Consequences

Neither the Administrator nor the Employer makes any commitment or guarantee that any amounts paid to or for the benefit of a Participant under the HRA will be excludable from the Participant's gross income for federal or state income tax purposes, or that any other federal or state tax treatment will apply to or be available to any Participant. It shall be the obligation of each Participant to determine whether each payment under the HRA is excludable from the Participant's gross income for federal and state income tax purposes, and to notify the Employer if the Participant has reason to believe that any such payment is not so excludable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the rights of Participants under this HRA shall be legally enforceable.

## 09. Indemnification of Employer by Participants

If any Participant receives one or more payments or reimbursements under the HRA that are not for a permitted Medical Expense such Participant shall indemnify and reimburse the Employer for any liability it may incur for failure to withhold federal or state income tax or Social Security tax from such payments or reimbursements. However, such indemnification and reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of additional federal and state income tax (plus any penalties) that the Participant would have owed if the payments or reimbursements had been made to the Participant as regular cash compensation, plus the Participant's share of any Social Security tax that would have been paid on such compensation, less any such additional income and Social Security tax actually paid by the Participant.

## 10. Funding

Unless otherwise required by law, amounts made available by the Employer need not be placed in trust, but may instead be considered general assets of the Employer. Furthermore, and unless otherwise required by law, nothing herein shall be construed to require the Employer or the Administrator to maintain any fund or segregate any amount for the benefit of any Participant, and no Participant or other person shall have any claim against, right to, or security or other interest in, any fund, account or asset of the Employer from which any payment under the HRA may be made.

## 11. Governing Law

This HRA and Trust shall be construed and enforced according to the Code, ERISA, and the laws of the state of New York, other than its laws respecting choice of law, to the extent not pre-empted by ERISA.

### 12. Severability

If any provision of the HRA is held invalid or unenforceable, its invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions of the HRA, and the HRA shall be construed and enforced as if such provision had not been included herein.

#### 13. Headings

The headings and subheadings of this HRA have been inserted for convenience of reference and are to be ignored in any construction of the provisions hereof.

## 14. Continuation of Coverage

Notwithstanding anything in the HRA to the contrary, in the event any benefit under this HRA subject to the continuation coverage requirement of Code Section 4980B becomes unavailable, each qualified beneficiary (as defined in Code Section 4980B) will be entitled to continuation coverage as prescribed in Code Section 4980B.

## 15. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

Notwithstanding anything in this HRA to the contrary, this HRA shall be operated in accordance with HIPAA and the regulations thereunder.

## 16. Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act

Notwithstanding any provision of this HRA to the contrary, contributions, benefits and service credit with respect to qualified military service shall be provided in accordance with USERRA and the regulations thereunder.

## 17. HIPAA Privacy Standards

- a. If this HRA is subject to the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (45 CFR Part 164, the "Privacy Standards"), then this Section shall apply.
- b. The HRA shall not disclose Protected Health Information to any member of Employer's workforce unless each of the conditions set out in this Section is met. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same definition as set forth in the Privacy Standards but generally shall mean individually identifiable information about the past, present or future physical or mental health or condition of an individual, including information about treatment or payment for treatment.
- c. Protected Health Information disclosed to members of Employer's workforce shall be used or disclosed by them only for purposes of HRA administrative functions. The HRA's administrative functions shall include all HRA payment functions and health care operations. The terms "payment" and "health care operations" shall have the same definitions as set out in the Privacy Standards, but the term "payment" generally shall mean activities taken to determine or fulfill HRA responsibilities with respect to eligibility, coverage, provision of benefits, or reimbursement for health care.
- d. The HRA shall disclose Protected Health Information only to members of the Employer's workforce who are authorized to receive such Protected Health Information, and only to the extent and in the minimum amount necessary for that person to perform his or her duties with respect to the HRA. "Members of the Employer's workforce" shall refer to all Employees and other persons under the control of the Employer. The Employer shall keep an updated list of those authorized to receive Protected Health Information.
  - 1. An authorized member of the Employer's workforce who receives Protected Health Information shall use or disclose the Protected Health Information only to the extent necessary to perform his or her duties with respect to the HRA.
  - 2. In the event that any member of the Employer's workforce uses or discloses Protected Health Information other than as permitted by this Section and the Privacy Standards, the incident shall be reported to the HRA's privacy officer. The privacy officer, or the Employer, shall take appropriate action, including:
    - i. investigation of the incident to determine whether the breach occurred inadvertently, through negligence or deliberately; whether there is a pattern of breaches; and the degree of harm caused by the breach;
    - appropriate sanctions against the persons causing the breach which, depending upon the nature of the breach, may include oral or written reprimand, additional training, or termination of employment;
    - iii. mitigation of any harm caused by the breach, to the extent practicable; and
    - iv. documentation of the incident and all actions taken to resolve the issue and mitigate any

damages.

- e. The Employer must provide certification to the HRA that it agrees to:
  - 1. Not use or further disclose Protected Health Information other than as permitted or required by the HRA documents or as required by law;
  - Ensure that any agent or subcontractor to whom it provides Protected Health Information received from the HRA, agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to the Employer with respect to such information;
  - 3. Not use or disclose Protected Health Information for employment-related actions and decisions or in connection with any other benefit or Employee benefit plan of the Employer;
  - 4. Report to the HRA any use or disclosure of the Protected Health Information of which it becomes aware that is inconsistent with the uses or disclosures permitted by this Section, or required by law;
  - 5. Make available Protected Health Information to individual HRA members in accordance with Section 164.524 of the Privacy Standards;
  - Make available Protected Health Information for amendment by individual HRA members and incorporate any amendments to Protected Health Information in accordance with Section 164.526 of the Privacy Standards;
  - 7. Make available the Protected Health Information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to individual HRA members in accordance with Section 164.528 of the Privacy Standards;
  - Make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of Protected Health Information received from the HRA available to the Department of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining compliance by the HRA with the Privacy Standards;
  - 9. If feasible, return or destroy all Protected Health Information received from the HRA that the Employer still maintains in any form, and retain no copies of such information, when no longer needed for the purpose for which disclosure was made, or, if and only if such return or destruction is not feasible, limit further uses and disclosures to those permitted purposes that make the return or destruction of the information infeasible; and
  - 10. Ensure adequate separation between the HRA and members of the Employer's workforce, as required by Section 164.504(f)(2)(iii) of the Privacy Standards and set out in (d) above.

#### 18. HIPAA Electronic Security Standards

If this HRA is subject to the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health Information (45 CFR Part 164.300 et. seq., the "Security Standards"), then this Section shall apply as follows:

- a. The Employer agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate administrative, physical and technical safeguards to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of Electronic Protected Health Information that the Employer creates, maintains or transmits on behalf of the HRA. "Electronic Protected Health Information" shall have the same definition as set out in the Security Standards, but generally shall mean Protected Health Information that is transmitted by or maintained in electronic media.
- b. The Employer shall ensure that any agent or subcontractor to whom it provides Electronic Protected Health Information shall agree, in writing, to implement reasonable and appropriate security measures to protect the Electronic Protected Health Information.
- c. The Employer shall ensure that reasonable and appropriate security measures are implemented to comply with the conditions and requirements set forth in the Section titled: "HIPAA Privacy Standards".
- d. The HRA shall not disclose Protected Health Information to any member of Employer's workforce unless each of the conditions set out in this Section is met. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same definition as set forth in the Privacy Standards but generally shall mean individually identifiable information about the past, present or future physical or mental health or condition of an individual, including information about treatment or payment for treatment.
- e. Protected Health Information disclosed to members of Employer's workforce shall be used or disclosed by them only for purposes of HRA administrative functions. The HRA's administrative functions shall include all HRA payment functions and health care operations. The terms "payment" and "health care operations" shall have the same definitions as set out in the Privacy Standards, but the term "payment" generally shall mean activities taken to determine or fulfill HRA responsibilities with respect to eligibility, coverage, provision of benefits, or reimbursement for health care.
- f. The HRA shall disclose Protected Health Information only to members of the Employer's workforce, who are authorized to receive such Protected Health Information, and only to the extent and in the minimum amount necessary for that person to perform his or her duties with respect to the HRA. "Members of the Employer's workforce" shall refer to all Employees and other persons under the control of the Employer. The Employer shall keep an updated list of those authorized to receive Protected Health Information.

- 1. An authorized member of the Employer's workforce who receives Protected Health Information shall use or disclose the Protected Health Information only to the extent necessary to perform his or her duties with respect to the HRA.
- 2. In the event that any member of the Employer's workforce uses or discloses Protected Health Information other than as permitted by this Section and the Privacy Standards, the incident shall be reported to the HRA's privacy officer. The privacy officer, or the Employer, shall take appropriate action, including:
  - i. investigation of the incident to determine whether the breach occurred inadvertently, through negligence or deliberately; whether there is a pattern of breaches; and the degree of harm caused by the breach;
  - ii. appropriate sanctions against the persons causing the breach which, depending upon the nature of the breach, may include oral or written reprimand, additional training, or termination of employment;
  - iii. mitigation of any harm caused by the breach, to the extent practicable; and
  - iv. documentation of the incident and all actions taken to resolve the issue and mitigate any damages.
- g. The Employer must provide certification to the HRA that it agrees to:
  - 1. Not use or further disclose Personal Health Information other than as permitted or required by the HRA documents or as required by law;
  - 2. Ensure that any agent or subcontractor, to whom it provides Protected Health Information received from the HRA, agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to the Employer with respect to such information;
  - 3. Not use or disclose Protected Health Information for employment-related actions and decisions or in connection with any other benefit or Employee benefit plan of the Employer;
  - 4. Report to the HRA any use or disclosure of the Protected Health Information of which it becomes aware that is inconsistent with the uses or disclosures permitted by this Section, or required by law;
  - 5. Make available Protected Health Information to individual HRA members in accordance with Section 164.524 of the Privacy Standards;
  - 6. Make available Protected Health Information for amendment by individual HRA members and incorporate any amendments to Protected Health Information in accordance with Section 164.526 of the Privacy Standards;
  - 7. Make available the Protected Health Information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to individual HRA members in accordance with Section 164.528 of the Privacy Standards;
  - 8. Make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of Protected Health Information received from the HRA available to the Department of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining compliance by the HRA with the Privacy Standards;
  - 9. If feasible, return or destroy all Protected Health Information received from the HRA that the Employer still maintains in any form, and retain no copies of such information when no longer needed for the purpose for which disclosure was made, or, if and only if such return or destruction is not feasible, limit further uses and disclosures to those permitted purposes that make the return or destruction of the information infeasible; and
  - 10. Ensure the adequate separation between the HRA and members of the Employer's workforce, as required by Section 164.504(f)(2)(iii) of the Privacy Standards and set out in (d) above.

# Appendix A - HRA Plan Benefit

## <u>HRA</u>

## **Employee Class**

Individual

#### **Qualified benefits**

- Rx drugs Health (prescriptions)
- Deductible Medical

#### **Plan Coverage**

Medical

#### **Reimbursement Schedule**

• The HRA will pay \$3,900.00 of qualifying expenses up to a max benefit limit of \$3,900.00.

## Unused HRA Funds

• Unused benefits at the end of the coverage period shall be forfeited.

## **Employee Class**

• Family

## **Qualified benefits**

- Rx drugs Health (prescriptions)
- Deductible Medical

## Plan Coverage

Medical

#### **Reimbursement Schedule**

• The HRA will pay \$7,800.00 of qualifying expenses up to a max benefit limit of \$7,800.00.

## **Unused HRA Funds**

• Unused benefits at the end of the coverage period shall be forfeited.

# **Execution Agreement**

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Clifton Park Water Authority has caused its authorized officer to execute this Plan document as of \_\_\_\_\_\_, the same to be effective January 01, 2021, unless otherwise indicated herein.

Clifton Park Water Authority

By:
-----

Name:

Title:

# CERTIFICATE OF RESOLUTION

The undersigned authorized representative of **Clifton Park Water Authority** (the Employer) hereby certifies that the following resolutions were duly adopted by the governing body of the Employer on \_\_\_\_\_\_, and that such resolutions have not been modified or rescinded as of the date hereof:

**RESOLVED**, that the form of Welfare Benefit Plan, effective January 01, 2021, presented to this meeting (and a copy of which is attached hereto) is hereby approved and adopted, and that the proper agents of the Employer are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver to the Administrator of said Plan one or more counterparts of the Plan.

**RESOLVED**, that the Administrator shall be instructed to take such actions that the Administrator deems necessary and proper in order to implement the Plan, and to set up adequate accounting and administrative procedures for the provision of benefits under the Plan.

**RESOLVED**, that the proper agents of the Employer shall act as soon as possible to notify the employees of the Employer of the adoption of the Plan and to deliver to each employee a copy of the Summary Plan Description of the Plan, which Summary Plan Description is attached hereto and is hereby approved.

The undersigned further certifies that attached hereto as Exhibits, are true copies of Clifton Park Water Authority's Benefit Plan Document and Summary Plan Description approved and adopted at this meeting.

Clifton Park Water Authority

Bу	:

Name:

Title:



# Clifton Park Water Authority

Clifton Park Water Authority 661 Clifton Park Ctr Rd Clifton Park, NY 12065

Clifton Park Water Authority HRA Plan

Summary Plan Description

Effective January 01, 2021

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

## INTRODUCTION

## I. ELIGIBILITY

- 01. What Are the Eligibility Requirements for this HRA?
- 02. When is My Entry Date?
- 03. Are There Any Employees Who Are Not Eligible?

## **II. BENEFITS**

- 01. What Benefits Are Available?
- 02. What is the "Plan Year"?
- 03. What is the "Coverage Period"?
- 04. How are payments made from the HRA?
- 05. What Happens If I Terminate Employment?
- 06. Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA)
- 07. Newborn and Mothers Health Protection Act
- 08. Qualified Medical Child Support Order

## **III. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT OUR HRA**

- 01. General HRA Information
- 02. Employer Information
- 03. Plan Administrator Information
- 04. Agent for Service of Legal Process
- 05. Type of Administration
- 06. Claims Administrator Information

## IV. ADDITIONAL HRA INFORMATION

- 01. Your Rights Under ERISA
- 02. How Claims Are Submitted

## INTRODUCTION

This is the Summary Plan Description (the "SPD") for the Clifton Park Water Authority HRA Plan, a Health Reimbursement Arrangement (the "HRA"). This SPD summarizes your rights and obligations as a participant (or beneficiary) in the HRA.

Read this SPD carefully so that you understand the provisions of our HRA and the benefits you will receive. You should direct any questions you have to the Plan Administrator. There is a plan document on file, which you may review if you desire. In the event there is a conflict between this SPD and the plan document, the plan document will control.

## I. ELIGIBILITY

## 01. What Are the Eligibility Requirements for this HRA?

You will be automatically enrolled in the HRA when you enroll in the Employer's group medical plan, unless you have opted out of the HRA.

## 02. When is My Entry Date?

Your entry date is the date that conditions of eligibility are satisfied.

## 03. Are There Any Employees Who Are Not Eligible?

Yes, employees who are not eligible to receive medical benefits under the group medical plan, or who are not enrolled in that plan, are not eligible to join the HRA.

## **II. BENEFITS**

## 01. What Benefits Are Available?

The HRA allows for reimbursement for expenses as described in the Appendices of this document. The expenses that qualify are those permitted by Section 213(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.

The amounts provided to the HRA by your employer will be made available on the first day of the plan year.

Expenses are considered "incurred" when the service is performed, not necessarily when it is paid for. Any amounts reimbursed under the HRA may not be claimed as a deduction on your personal income tax return or reimbursed by other health plan coverage.

If the maximum amount available for reimbursement for a Coverage Period is not utilized in its entirety, refer to Appendix A for information on how these funds will be handled.

#### 02. What is the "Plan Year"?

The "Plan Year" begins January 01, 2021 and ends August 31, 2021. Each subsequent "Plan Year" will be the 12 month period that begins on September 01 and ends on August 31.

#### 03. What is the "Coverage Period"?

The period of the current "Coverage Period" in which the individual is an eligible employee on or after his or her plan entry date.

#### 04. How are payments made from the HRA?

The group Health Plan Carrier will submit requests for reimbursement of expenses you have incurred during the course of a Coverage Period for Qualified Medical Expenses as described in Appendix A. All claims need to be submitted for reimbursements no later than 180 days after the end of the Coverage Period (that is, no later than 02/27). If the request qualifies as a benefit or expense that the HRA has agreed to pay, the claims processor will pay your Provider direct. You are responsible to pay your Provider for any expenses not covered by this HRA.

Remember, reimbursements made from the HRA are generally not subject to federal income tax or withholding. Nor are they subject to Social Security taxes.

#### 05. What Happens If I Terminate Employment?

If your employment is terminated during the Plan Year for any reason, your participation in the HRA will cease on the date of your termination, and you will not be eligible to be reimbursed for any expenses incurred past that date. You must submit claims for any expenses incurred prior to your termination of employment within 180 days after you terminate employment. Any unused amounts will be forfeited.

#### 06. Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA)

If you are going into or returning from military service, the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 may give you special rights to health care coverage under the HRA. These rights can include extended health care coverage. If you may be affected by this law, ask your Plan Administrator for further details.

#### 07. Newborn and Mothers Health Protection Act

Group health plans generally may not, under Federal law, restrict benefits for any hospital length of stay in connection with childbirth for the mother or newborn child to less than 48 hours following a vaginal delivery, or less than 96 hours following a cesarean section. However, Federal law generally does not prohibit the mother's or newborn's attending provider, after consulting with the mother, from discharging the mother or her newborn earlier than 48 hours (or 96 hours as applicable). In any case, plans and issuers may not, under Federal law, require that a provider obtain authorization from the HRA or the issuer for prescribing a length of stay not in excess of 48 hours (or 96 hours).

#### 08. Qualified Medical Child Support Order

A medical child support order is a judgment, decree or order (including approval of a property settlement) made under state law that provides for child support or health coverage for the child of a participant. The child becomes an "alternate recipient" and can receive benefits under the health plans of the Employer, if the order is determined to be "qualified." You may obtain, without charge, a copy of the procedures governing the determination of qualified medical child support orders from the Plan Administrator.

## **III. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT OUR HRA**

This Section contains certain general information, which you may need to know about the HRA.

### 01. General HRA Information

"Clifton Park Water Authority HRA Plan" is the name of the Plan.

Your Employer has assigned Plan Number 515 to your Plan.

This HRA is integrated with a group health plan entitled the "Clifton Park Water Authority Health Plan", which has been assigned policy number 427006.

The company has adopted this Plan effective January 01, 2021.

Your Plan's records are maintained on the basis of a period of time known as the "Plan Year". The initial Plan Year begins on January 01, 2021 and ends on August 31, 2021. Each subsequent Plan Year will be the 12 month period that begins on September 01 and ends August 31.

## 02. Employer Information

Your Employer's name, address, and identification number are:

Clifton Park Water Authority 661 Clifton Park Ctr Rd Clifton Park, NY 12065 EIN: 14-1737625

## 03. Plan Administrator Information

The name and address of your Plan Administrator are:

MVP Health Care PO Box 2207 Schenectady, NY 12301

The Plan Administrator will also answer any questions you may have about our HRA. The Plan Administrator has the exclusive right to interpret the appropriate HRA provisions. Decisions of the Plan Administrator are conclusive and binding. You may contact the Plan Administrator for any further information about the HRA.

#### 04. Agent for Service of Legal Process

Should it ever be necessary, you or your personal representative may serve legal process on the agent for service of legal process for the HRA. The HRA Agent of Service is:

Clifton Park Water Authority 661 Clifton Park Ctr Rd Clifton Park, NY 12065

Legal process may also be served on the Plan Administrator.

## 05. Type of Administration

The HRA is a health reimbursement arrangement. The HRA is not funded or insured. Benefits are paid from the general assets of the Employer.

## 06. Claims Administrator Information

The name and address of your Claims Administrator are:

MVP Health Care PO Box 2207 Schenectady, NY 12301

The Claims Administrator keeps the claims records for the HRA and is responsible for the claims administration of the HRA. The Claims Administrator will also answer any claims-related questions you may have about the HRA.

## **IV. ADDITIONAL HRA INFORMATION**

## 01. Your Rights Under ERISA

HRA Participants, eligible employees and all other employees of the Employer may be entitled to certain rights and protections under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and the Internal Revenue Code. These laws provide that Participants, eligible employees and all other employees are entitled to:

- a. Examine, without charge, at the Plan Administrator's office, all HRA documents, including insurance contracts, collective bargaining agreements, and a copy of the latest annual report (Form 5500 Series) filed by the HRA with the U.S. Department of Labor (also, available at the Public Disclosure Room of the Employee Benefits Security Administration).
- b. Obtain copies of all HRA documents and other HRA information upon written request to the Plan Administrator. The Plan Administrator may charge a reasonable fee for the copies.
- c. Continue health care coverage for a HRA Participant, Spouse, or other dependents if there is a loss of coverage under the HRA as a result of a qualifying event. Employees and dependents may have to pay for such coverage.

If your claim for a benefit is denied or ignored, in whole or in part, you have a right to know why this was done, to obtain copies of documents relating to the decision without charge, and to appeal any denial, all within certain time frames.

If you have a claim for benefits, which is denied or ignored, in whole or in part, you may file suit in a state or Federal court; provided, such suit may be filed only after the plan's review procedures described herein have been exhausted and only if filed within 90 days after the final decision on review is provided, or, if a later date is specified in a booklet, certificate or other documentation for a particular Welfare Program, only if filed by such later date.

Under ERISA there are steps you can take to enforce the above rights. For instance, if you request materials from the HRA and do not receive them within thirty (30) days, you may file suit in a Federal court. In such a case, the court may request the Plan Administrator to provide the materials and pay you up to \$112 a day until you receive the materials, unless the materials were not sent because of reasons beyond the control of the Plan Administrator. If you have a claim for benefits, which is denied or ignored, in whole or in part, you may file suit in a state or Federal court.

In addition, if a HRA Participant disagrees with the HRA's decision or lack thereof concerning the qualified status of a medical child support order, he or she may file suit in federal court.

In addition to creating rights for HRA Participants, ERISA imposes obligations upon the individuals who are responsible for the operation of the HRA. The individuals who operate the HRA, called "fiduciaries" of the HRA, have a duty to do so prudently and in the interests of the HRA Participants and their beneficiaries. No one, including the Employer or any other person, may fire a HRA Participant or otherwise discriminate against a HRA Participant in any way to prevent the HRA Participant from obtaining benefits under the HRA or from exercising his or her rights under ERISA.

If it should happen that HRA fiduciaries misuse the HRA's money, or if you are discriminated against for asserting your rights, you may seek assistance from the U.S. Department of Labor, or you may file suit in a Federal court. The court will decide who should pay court costs and legal fees. If you are successful, the court may order the person you have sued to pay these costs and fees. If you lose, the court may order you to pay these costs and fees; for example, if it finds your claim is frivolous.

If you have any questions about the HRA, you should contact the Plan Administrator. If you have any questions about your rights under ERISA or the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), or if you need assistance in obtaining documents from the Plan Administrator, you should contact the nearest office of the Employee Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, listed in the telephone directory, or the Division of Technical Assistance and Inquiries, Employee Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20210. You may also obtain certain publications about your rights and responsibilities under ERISA by calling the publications hotline of the Employee Benefits Security Administration.

## 02. How claims are submitted

Your group Health Plan Carrier will submit all claims to the Claims Processor for processing. All claims with be processed in accordance with the HRA plan design contained in Appendix A of this document.

A Claim is defined as any request for a HRA benefit, made by a claimant or by a representative of a claimant that complies with the HRA's reasonable procedure for making benefit Claims. The times listed are maximum times only. A period of time begins at the time the Claim is filed. Unless otherwise specified, decisions will be made within a reasonable period of time appropriate to the circumstances. "Days" means calendar days.

Insufficient information on the claim:

Notification of	15 days
Response by Participant	45 days
Review of claim denial	60 days

The Claims Administrator will provide written or electronic notification of any Claim denial. The notice will state:

- 1. Information sufficient to identify the claim involved, including the date of service, the health care provider, the claim amount (if applicable), the diagnosis code and its corresponding meaning, and the treatment code and its corresponding meaning.
- 2. The specific reason or reasons for the adverse determination.
- 3. Reference to the specific HRA or Welfare Program provisions on which the determination is based.
- 4. A description of any additional material or information necessary to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary.
- A description of the HRA's internal review procedures and time limits applicable to such procedures, available external review procedures, as well as the claimant's right to bring a civil action under Section 502 of ERISA following a final appeal.
- 6. Upon request and free of charge, a copy of any internal rule, guideline, protocol or other similar criterion that was relied upon in making the adverse determination regarding the claim, and an explanation of the scientific or clinical judgment for a determination that is based on a medical necessity, experimental treatment or other similar exclusion or limit.
- 7. In the case of a claim involving urgent care, a description of the expedited review process applicable to such claim.
- 8. The availability of and contact information for an applicable office of health insurance consumer assistance or ombudsman established under PHS Act Section 2793.

When you receive a denial, you will have 180 days following receipt of the notification in which to appeal the decision to the Claims Administrator. You may submit written comments, documents, records, and other information relating to the Claim. If you request, you will be provided, free of charge, reasonable access to, and copies of, all documents, records, and other information relevant to the Claim.

The period of time within which a denial on review is required to be made will begin at the time an appeal is filed in accordance with the procedures of the HRA. This timing is without regard to whether all the necessary information accompanies the filing.

A document, record, or other information shall be considered relevant to a Claim if it:

- 1. was relied upon in making the Claim determination;
- 2. was submitted, considered, or generated in the course of making the Claim determination, without regard to whether it was relied upon in making the Claim determination;
- demonstrated compliance with the administrative processes and safeguards designed to ensure and to verify that Claim determinations are made in accordance with HRA documents and HRA provisions have been applied consistently with respect to all claimants;
- 4. or constituted a statement of policy or guidance with respect to the HRA concerning the denied Claim.

The review will take into account all comments, documents, records, and other information submitted by the claimant relating to the Claim, without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial Claim determination. The review will not afford deference to the initial denial and will be conducted by a fiduciary of the HRA who is neither the individual who made the adverse determination nor a subordinate of that individual.

After receiving notice of an adverse benefit determination or a final internal adverse benefit determination, a claimant may file with the HRA a request for an external review. A claimant may request from the Plan Administrator additional information describing the HRA's external review procedure.

## IF YOU HAVE QUESTIONS

For more information about your rights under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), including the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and other laws affecting group health plans, visit the U.S. Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration (EBSA) website at www.dol.gov/ebsa or call their toll-free number at 1-866-444-3272.

For more information about health insurance options available through the Health Insurance Marketplace, and to locate an assister in your area who you can talk to about the different options, visit www.HealthCare.gov.

## KEEP YOUR PLAN ADMINISTRATOR INFORMED OF ADDRESS CHANGES

In order to protect your family's rights, you should keep the Plan Administrator informed of any changes in the addresses of family members. You should also keep a copy, for your records, of any notices you send to the Plan Administrator or its designee.

## <u>HRA</u>

## **Employee Class**

Individual

## **Qualified benefits**

- Rx drugs Health (prescriptions)
- Deductible Medical

## Plan Coverage

Medical

#### **Reimbursement Schedule**

• The HRA will pay \$3,900.00 of qualifying expenses up to a max benefit limit of \$3,900.00.

#### **Unused HRA Funds**

• Unused benefits at the end of the coverage period shall be forfeited.

## **Employee Class**

• Family

## **Qualified benefits**

- Rx drugs Health (prescriptions)
- Deductible Medical

## Plan Coverage

Medical

#### **Reimbursement Schedule**

• The HRA will pay \$7,800.00 of qualifying expenses up to a max benefit limit of \$7,800.00.

## **Unused HRA Funds**

• Unused benefits at the end of the coverage period shall be forfeited.

## SAMPLE NOTICE for Eligible Employees

Must be provided 90 days in advance of beginning of plan year to each eligible employee, or when newly eligible.

This notice is intended to inform you of the Health Reimbursement Arrangement provided by \_\_\_\_\_\_ Company for eligible employees as of the new benefit year, \_\_\_\_\_.

The Reimbursement Amount for the	benefit year is:
Employee	\$
Employee & Spouse	\$

 Employee & Child(ren)
 \$\_\_\_\_\_\_

 Family
 \$\_\_\_\_\_\_

A Participant must submit a claim and appropriate documentation (e.g. explanation of benefits, itemized bill) for out-of-pocket, Medical, Dental, Vision expenses before he/she can be reimbursed.

Pursuant to IRS regulations, a Participant/Employee must notify the Marketplace, Health Insurance exchange or state-based exchange for any employee applying for advance payment of premium assistance tax credit of this benefit information.

Details of this benefit will be included in the Employee's W-2 provided by the Employer and as required, will be reported to the IRS for each employee covered under the benefit.

Important Notice to Participants/Employees: If an employee is not covered under minimum essential coverage for any month during this benefit year, the participant may be subject to tax under Section 5000A of IRC, for such month and reimbursements under the HRA arrangement may be includible in gross income.

This benefit is subject to the terms of the Employer's Health Reimbursement Arrangement, as amended from time to time, shall be governed by and construed in accordance with applicable laws.

For more information about health insurance options available through the Health Insurance Marketplace, and to locate an assister in your area who you can talk to about the different options, visit www.HealthCare.gov.

## **Don Austin**

From:	Don Austin
Sent:	Friday, February 19, 2021 12:06 PM
То:	Alexis Osborne; Bill Butler (Bbutler566@aol.com); Helmut Gerstenberger; Jim Trainor;
	Peter Taubkin
Subject:	Verizon
Attachments:	ATT Boyack Lease.pdf

Good Morning,

I have attached the current AT&T lease agreement for the Boyack Tank site. Currently, they are the only carrier with a lease at this site. In response to the comments regarding interference caused by one party's equipment on another's, Section 11(H) of the lease agreement speaks to that.

Here are the current rent payments by the cell carriers for both sites:

## Knolltop:

T-Mobile - \$2,423.79 (3% Annual Increase) Verizon Wireless - \$2,284.66 (3% Annual Increase) IWO/Sprint PCS - \$1,975.00 (15% Increase at 5 year renewal term) – Next renewal 6/2025 AT&T - \$2,318.55 (3% Annual Increase)

AT&T (Boyack Location) - \$2,318.55 (3% Annual Increase)

Verizon's initial business terms for the proposed lease at Boyack were:

- 25-year lease (initial term of 5 years with 4 renewal options, each for five years.
- \$1,000 per month rent
- 1% annual escalator

After indicating to Verizon that the rent amount was likely lower than we would be willing to consider, they came back with an offer of \$1,500 per month.

Please let me know if you have any further questions or would like copies of any of our other lease agreements.

**Don Austin** Administrator

Clifton Park Water Authority 661 Clifton Park Center Road Clifton Park, NY 12065 518-383-1122

## 2020 Capital Budget Report

## 2020 Capital Budget Items Completed in 2020

Item	Estimated Cost	Actual Cost	Differential
Brass Goods	\$19,000	\$19,359	(\$359)
Yearly Water Meter Purchases	\$130,000	\$53,333	\$76,667
Fire Hydrants	\$21,000	\$20,650	\$350
Pickup Truck	\$30,000	\$30,708	(\$708)
Well Redevelopment	\$15,000	\$16,175	(\$1,175)
SCADA Upgrades	\$8,100	\$8,100	\$0
Office Server	\$6,000	\$8,039	(\$2,039)
Variable Frequency Drive for Preserve Well	\$15,000	\$14,700	\$300
Tappping Tool	\$10,200	\$9,080	\$1,120
GPS Data Collector and Software	\$7,000	\$6,826	\$174
Total	\$261,300	\$186,970	\$74,330

## 2020 Capital Budget Items Still In Progress as of 12/31/2020

ltem	Estimated Cost	Actual Cost	Differential
New Dump Truck	\$150,000	\$0	\$150,000
Knolltop Tank Refurbishment	\$591,445	\$557,143	\$34,302
Preserve Water Supply Investigation	\$40,400	\$1,723	\$38,677
SCWA Interconnect Contract & Engineering	\$1,036,600	\$393,983	\$642,617
Total	\$1,818,445	\$952,849	\$865,596

2018 Capital Budget Items Still In Progress as of 12/31/2020									
ltem	Estimated Cost	Cost-To-Date	Differential						
Design of Upgrades to SCWA Interconnect	\$82,400	\$80,039	\$2,361						
Total	\$82,400	\$80,039	\$ <u>2,361</u>						

## 2020 Year-End Investment Report

			<u>2019 Y/E</u>			
CPWA Bank Accounts	•	Y/E Balance	<u>Balance</u>	Interest Rate	Int	erest Earned
KeyBank /	\$	743,040.62	\$ 135,079.58	0.01%	\$	86.04
KeyBank/Revenue Fund	\$	2,328,701.57	\$ 2,327,884.90	0.01%	\$	970.96
KeyBank/Payroll Account	\$	31,222.98	\$ 31,019.23		\$	
KeyBank/Payment Account	\$	16,463.40	\$ 26,348.35	······	\$	-
KeyBank/Sprint-IWO Security Deposit Account	\$	4,172.77	\$ 4,170.73	0.01%	\$	2.04
KeyBank/Omnipoint-T-Mobile Sec Dep Acct	\$	5,175.17	\$ 5,172.63	0.01%	\$	2.54
KeyBank/Verizon Wireless Sec Dep Acct	\$	-	\$ 5,127.74	0.00%	\$	1.69
KeyBank/AT&T Knolltop Sec Dep Acct	\$	6,022.84	\$ 6,019.90	0.01%	\$	2.94
KeyBank/AT&T Boyack Sec Dep Acct	\$	6,022.41	\$ 6,019.47	0.01%	\$	2.94

KeyBanc Capital Markets	Pri	ncipal Cost	 rket Value as 2/31/20	Ma	aturity Value		
U. S. Treasury Note - Maturity Date:							
03/31/21	\$	298,944.00	\$ 298,629.00	\$	300,000.00	1.250% \$	3,750.00
U. S. Treasury Bills - Maturity Date: 09	)_			-			
10-2020	\$	294,990.00	\$ -	\$	300,000.00	0.000% \$	5,010.00
U. S. Treasury Note - Maturity Date:			and the second				
08/31/2020	\$	299,895.00	\$ -	\$	300,000.00	1.375% \$	2,062.50

Accounts Related to the 2016, 2009 & 2003 Bonds (Bank of New York			Ma	rket Value as						
Mellon) (Restricted)	Fac	ce Value	of '	of 12/31/20		Cost			Accrued Income	
99A Debt Service Reserve Fund - Berkshire Bk - Maturity Date: 04/06/2021	\$	200,000.00	\$	201,219.98	\$	200,000.00	2.50%	\$	1,191.78	
99A Debt Service Reserve Fund - Citibank Natl Assn- Maturity Date: 12/27/2021	\$	38,000.00	\$	39,092.84	\$	38,000.00	3.20%	\$	19.99	
99A Debt Service Reserve Fund - Goldman Sachs Bk USA - Maturity Date: 04/05/2021	\$	154,000.00	\$	155,031.09	\$	154,000.00	2.75%	\$	1,032.64	
99A Debt Service Reserve Fund - Haddon Svgs Bk - Maturity Date: 04/09/2021	\$	150,000.00	\$	150,984.79	\$	150,000.00	2.60%	\$	897.53	
*99A Debt Service Reserve Fund - Goldman Finl SQ Trsry Inst 506			\$	1,477,754.51				\$	1,032.64	
Accounts Related to the 2003 & 2013 Bonds (Bank of New York Mellon) (Restricted)	3 Face Value		Market Value as of 12/31/20		Co	st			nated Ial Income	
*2003 Rate Stabilization Fund - Goldman Finl SQ Trsry Inst 506			\$	297,783.91				\$	18.15	
*2013 Bond Series - Goldman Finl SQ Trsry Inst 506			\$	491,502.81				\$	22.55	